
CITY OF IOWA COLONY 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS ON JULY 6 AND 19, 2021, 

ON UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE AND ZONING ORDINANCE 

 

The Iowa Colony Planning and Zoning Commission will continue a public hearing at 

7:00 p.m. on August 3, 2021, and the Iowa Colony City Council will continue a public 

hearing at 7:00 p.m. on August 16, 2021, each in the Council Chambers at the Iowa 

Colony City Hall, 12003 Iowa Colony Boulevard, Iowa Colony, Texas on amending the 

Unified Development Code and the Zoning Ordinance on: (1) regulations, procedures, 

and authority under those ordinances for the City Council, Building Codes Board of 

Appeals, Zoning Board of Adjustment, Planning and Zoning Commission, and other 

boards and commissions; and (2) building transparency, build-to lines, external building 

requirements, and other building regulations. All interested persons may be heard 

concerning these matters.  

 

       Kayleen Rosser 

       City Secretary 

  

 

 

 

Cop
y



 
 

 

 

IOWA COLONY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF JULY 6, 2021 

 

Members present: David Hurst, Steven Byrum-Bratsen, Melanie Hampton, Tim    

   Varlack, and McLean Barnett 

Members absent: Vince Patterson and Les Hosey  

Others present:   Dinh Ho 

 

MEETING- 7:00 P.M. 

1. Chairman Hurst called the meeting to order at 7:01 P.M.  

2. Citizens Comments. No comments from the public.  

"An opportunity for the public to address Planning and Zoning Commission on agenda items or concerns not on the agenda. To 

comply with the Texas Open Meetings Act, this period is not for question and answer.  Those wishing to speak must observe a 

three-minute time limit.” 

3. PUBLIC HEARING 

 Hold a public hearing on amending the Unified Development Code and the Zoning Ordinance on: 

(1) regulations, procedures, and authority under those ordinances for the City Council, Building 

Codes Board of Appeals, Zoning Board of Adjustment, Planning and Zoning Commission, and 

other boards and commissions; and (2) building transparency, build-to lines, external building 

requirements, and other building regulations. Chairman Hurst opened the public hearing and left 

it open. No comments from the public regarding the public hearing.  

4. Consideration and possible action to amend the Unified Development Code and the Zoning Ordinance 

on: (1) regulations, procedures, and authority under those ordinances for the City Council, Building 

Codes Board of Appeals, Zoning Board of Adjustment, Planning and Zoning Commission, and other 

boards and commissions; and (2) building transparency, build-to lines, external building requirements, 

and other building regulations. No action taken.  

5. Consider approval of the June 1, 2021 meeting minutes. Steven Byrum-Bratsen made a motion to 

approve the June 1, 2021 meeting minutes. Seconded by Tim Varlack. Approved unanimously.  

6. Consideration and possible action for the Meridiana Section 57 Preliminary Plat. Steven Byrum-

Bratsen made a motion to approve the Meridiana Section 57 Preliminary Plat with the developer to check 

on street names. Seconded by Melanie Hampton. Approved unanimously.  

7. Consideration and possible action regarding Brazoria County MUD No. 87; a DR Horton 

Development. Johnathan Woodrow with DR Horton presented a power point regarding the development 

for MUD No. 87. No action taken.  

 

 

12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 

Iowa Colony, Tx. 77583 

Phone: 281-369-2471 

Fax: 281-369-0005 

www.iowacolonytx.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

Cop
y



8. Consideration and possible action regarding the appointment of the Advisory Committee for the water 

and sewer impact fee study. Steven Byrum-Bratsen made a motion to accept the appointment for the 

Planning and Zoning Commission as the Advisory Committee. Seconded by Tim Varlack. Approved 

unanimously.  

9. Steven Byrum-Bratsen made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:40 P.M. Seconded by McLean 

Barnett. Approved unanimously.  

 

APPROVED THIS 3rd DAY OF AUGUST, 2021. 

 

ATTEST:  

 

____________________________                      ______________________________ 

  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary                               David Hurst, Chairman 

 

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  
 

 

Wednesday, July 28, 2021 
 
Brad Sweitzer 
EHRA Inc. 
10555 Westoffice Dr.  
Houston, TX 77042 
 
Re: Meridiana Section 58B Preliminary Plat 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. SPP 210707-0892 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-2-206 

 
Dear Mr. Sweitzer; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the second submittal of the preliminary plat package for 
Meridiana Section 58B, received on or about July 22, 2021. The review of the plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony 
Subdivision Ordinance No. 2019-09 dated August 2002, and as amended.  
 
Based upon on our review, we have no objections to the preliminary plat as resubmitted on July 22, 2021. Please provide ten 
(10) prints of the plat to Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, by no later than July 29, 2021, for consideration at the August 3, 2021, 
Planning and Zoning meeting. 

 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov)  
 Robert Hemminger, City Manager, (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  

Ron Cox, (rcox@roncoxconsulting.com) 
 File: 16007-2-206 

Cop
y

mailto:krosser@iowacolonytx.
mailto:rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov
mailto:rcox@roncoxconsulting.com


APPROVED,ADICO, LLC, 07282021

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D .      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 

 
 

Friday, July 30, 2021 
 
Amber Scopes 
Pape-Dawson Engineers, Inc. 
10350 Richard Ave., Suite 200 
Houston, TX 77042 
 
Re: Sterling Lakes North Section One Preliminary Plat 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 
 CIOC Project No. SPP 200923-1093 
 ALLC Project No. 16007-2-171 
 
Dear Ms. Scopes; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the third submittal of Sterling Lakes North Section One 
Preliminary Plat received on or about July 30, 2021. The review of the plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision 
Ordinance dated August 2002 and as amended.  
 
Based upon our review, we have no objections to the preliminary plat as resubmitted on July 30, 2021. Please provide Kayleen 
Rosser, City Secretary, ten (10) folded prints by no later than Monday, August 2, 2021, for consideration at the August 3, 2021, 
Planning and Zoning Meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov)  
 Robert Hemminger, City Manager, (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  

Ron Cox, (rcox@roncoxconsulting.com) 
 File: 16007-2-171 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cop
y

mailto:krosser@iowacolonytx.
mailto:rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov
mailto:rcox@roncoxconsulting.com


LOCATION MAP

10333 RICHMOND AVE, STE 900 I HOUSTON, TX 77042 I 713.428.2400

HOUSTON I SAN ANTONIO I AUSTIN I FORT WORTH I DALLAS

TBPE FIRM REGISTRATION #470  I  TBPLS FIRM REGISTRATION #10193974

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07302021

Cop
y



LOCATION MAP

MATCHLINE "A" - SEE SHEET 3 OF 4

MATCHLINE "B" - SEE SHEET 4 OF 4

MATCHLINE "A" - SEE SHEET 3 OF 4

10333 RICHMOND AVE, STE 900 I HOUSTON, TX 77042 I 713.428.2400

HOUSTON I SAN ANTONIO I AUSTIN I FORT WORTH I DALLAS

TBPE FIRM REGISTRATION #470  I  TBPLS FIRM REGISTRATION #10193974

CEDAR RAPIDS PARKWAY

C
.R

. 8
47

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07302021

Cop
y



V
V

V
V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V
V

V
V

MATCHLINE "A" - SEE SHEET 4 OF 4

MATCHLINE "A" - SEE SHEET 4 OF 4

M
A

TC
HLIN

E "C
" - SEE SHEET 4 O

F 4

M
A

TC
HLIN

E "C
" - SEE SHEET 4 O

F 4

LOCATION MAP

10333 RICHMOND AVE, STE 900 I HOUSTON, TX 77042 I 713.428.2400

HOUSTON I SAN ANTONIO I AUSTIN I FORT WORTH I DALLAS

TBPE FIRM REGISTRATION #470  I  TBPLS FIRM REGISTRATION #10193974

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07302021

Cop
y



KARSTEN BOULEVARD
VV

V
V

V
V

V
V

VV
V

VVV
V

V
V

V
V

V
V V

V
V

V
V

V
V

V
V

M
A

TC
HLIN

E "C
" - SEE SHEET 4 O

F 4

M
A

TC
HLIN

E "B" - SEE SHEET 2 O
F 4

LOCATION MAP

10333 RICHMOND AVE, STE 900 I HOUSTON, TX 77042 I 713.428.2400

HOUSTON I SAN ANTONIO I AUSTIN I FORT WORTH I DALLAS

TBPE FIRM REGISTRATION #470  I  TBPLS FIRM REGISTRATION #10193974

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07302021

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D .      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 

 
 

Wednesday, July 28, 2021 
 
Stan Winter 
Jones Carter 
1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, TX 77380 
 
Re: Sterling Lakes North Section 2 Preliminary Plat 

Previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section One from Jones and Carter 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 
 CIOC Project No. SPP 210510-0648 
 ALLC Project No. 16007-2-194 
 
Dear Mr. Winter; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the third submittal for Sterling Lakes North Section 2 
Preliminary Plat, previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section One from Jones and Carter, received on or about July 
28, 2021. The review of the plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance dated August 2002 and as amended.  
 
Based upon our review, we have no objections to the preliminary plat as resubmitted on July 28, 2021. Please submit ten (10) 
folded copies of the plat to Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, by no later than Thursday, July 29th, for consideration at the August 
3, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov)  
 Robert Hemminger, City Manager, (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  

Ron Cox, (rcox@roncoxconsulting.com) 
 File: 16007-2-194 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cop
y



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439
Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 100461-04
6330 West Loop South, Suite 150  Bellaire, TX 77401  713.777.5337

“ ”

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07282021

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D .      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 

 
 

Wednesday, July 28, 2021 
 
Stan Winter 
Jones Carter 
1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, TX 77380 
 
Re: Sterling Lakes North Section 3 Preliminary Plat 
 Previously Submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section 2 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 
 CIOC Project No. SPP 210510-0649 
 ALLC Project No. 16007-2-195 
 
Dear Mr. Winter; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the third submittal for Sterling Lakes North Section 3 
Preliminary Plat, previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section 2, received on or about July 28, 2021. The review of the 
plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance dated August 2002 and as amended.  
 
Based upon our review, we have no objections to the preliminary plat as resubmitted on July 28, 2021. Please submit ten (10) 
folded copies of the plat to Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, by no later than Thursday, July 29th, for consideration at the August 
3, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov)  
 Robert Hemminger, City Manager, (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  

Ron Cox, (rcox@roncoxconsulting.com) 
 File: 16007-2-195 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cop
y



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439
8701 New Trails Drive, Suite 200  The Woodlands, Texas 77381

 281.363.4039

“ ”

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07282021

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D .      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 

 
 

Wednesday, July 28, 2021 
 
Stan Winter 
Jones Carter 
1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, TX 77380 
 
Re: Sterling Lakes North Section 4 Preliminary Plat 
 Previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section 5 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 
 CIOC Project No. SPP 210510-0650 
 ALLC Project No. 16007-2-196 
 
Dear Mr. Winter; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the third submittal for Sterling Lakes North Section 4 
Preliminary Plat, previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section 5, received on or about July 28, 2021. The review of the 
plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance dated August 2002 and as amended.  
 
Based upon our review, we have no objections to the preliminary plat as resubmitted on July 28, 2021. Please submit ten (10) 
folded copies of the plat to Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, by no later than Thursday, July 29th, for consideration at the August 
3, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov)  
 Robert Hemminger, City Manager, (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  

Ron Cox, (rcox@roncoxconsulting.com) 
 File: 16007-2-196 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cop
y



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439
8701 New Trails Drive, Suite 200  The Woodlands, Texas 77381

 281.363.4039

“ ”

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07282021

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D .      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 

 
 

Wednesday, July 28, 2021 
 
Stan Winter 
Jones Carter 
1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, TX 77380 
 
Re: Sterling Lakes North Section 5 Preliminary Plat 
 Previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section 7 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 
 CIOC Project No. SPP 210510-0651 
 ALLC Project No. 16007-2-197 
 
Dear Mr. Winter; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the third submittal for Sterling Lakes North Section 5 
Preliminary Plat, previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section 7, received on or about July 28, 2021. The review of the 
plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance dated August 2002 and as amended.  
 
Based upon our review, we have no objections to the preliminary plat as resubmitted on July 28, 2021. Please submit ten (10) 
folded copies of the plat to Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, by no later than Thursday, July 29th, for consideration at the August 
3, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov)  
 Robert Hemminger, City Manager, (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  

Ron Cox, (rcox@roncoxconsulting.com) 
 File: 16007-2-197 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cop
y



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439
Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 100461-04
6330 West Loop South, Suite 150  Bellaire, TX 77401  713.777.5337

“ ”

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07282021

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D .      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 

 
 

Wednesday, July 28, 2021 
 
Stan Winter 
Jones Carter 
1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, TX 77380 
 
Re: Sterling Lakes North Section 6 Preliminary Plat 
 Previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section 9 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 
 CIOC Project No. SPP 210510-0652 
 ALLC Project No. 16007-2-198 
 
Dear Mr. Winter; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the third submittal for Sterling Lakes North Section 6 
Preliminary Plat, previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section 9, received on or about July 28, 2021. The review of the 
plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance dated August 2002 and as amended.  
 
Based upon our review, we have no objections to the preliminary plat as resubmitted on July 28, 2021. Please submit ten (10) 
folded copies of the plat to Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, by no later than Thursday, July 29th, for consideration at the August 
3, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov)  
 Robert Hemminger, City Manager, (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  

Ron Cox, (rcox@roncoxconsulting.com) 
 File: 16007-2-198 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cop
y



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439
Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 100461-04
6330 West Loop South, Suite 150  Bellaire, TX 77401  713.777.5337

“ ”

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07282021

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D .      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 

 
 

Wednesday, July 28, 2021 
 
Stan Winter 
Jones Carter 
1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, TX 77380 
 
Re: Sterling Lakes North Section 7 Preliminary Plat 
 Previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section 10 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 
 CIOC Project No. SPP 210510-0653 
 ALLC Project No. 16007-2-199 
 
Dear Mr. Winter; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the third submittal for Sterling Lakes North Section 7 
Preliminary Plat, previously submitted as Sterling Lakes North Section 10, received on or about July 28, 2021. The review of 
the plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance dated August 2002 and as amended.  
 
Based upon our review, we have no objections to the preliminary plat as resubmitted on July 28, 2021. Please submit ten (10) 
folded copies of the plat to Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, by no later than Thursday, July 29th, for consideration at the August 
3, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov)  
 Robert Hemminger, City Manager, (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  

Ron Cox, (rcox@roncoxconsulting.com) 
 File: 16007-2-199 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cop
y



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439
8701 New Trails Drive, Suite 200  The Woodlands, Texas 77381

 281.363.4039

“ ”

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07282021

Cop
y



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439
8701 New Trails Drive, Suite 200  The Woodlands, Texas 77381

 281.363.4039

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 07282021

Cop
y



  

 

August 3, 2021 

 

LETTER OF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Re: Sterling Lakes at Iowa Colony/Sierra Vista Plan of Development Amendment Number 3 

 

The City of Iowa Colony staff have received a proposed amendment to the current approved 

Plan of Development for Sterling Lakes at Iowa Colony/Sierra Vista on July 7, 2021.  Documents 

attached to this LOR include: General Development Plan 11-20-2015; General Development 

Plan dated 05-01-2018, revised 01-04-2021; Compare Result 1.pdf; Cover Letter Revised.pdf; 

and Figure 2_General Plan -markup.pdf. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The General Development Plan that first includes both Sterling Lakes and Sierra Vista is dated 

11-20-2015 (the 2015 Plan).  Figure 2 General Development Plan dated 05-01-2018 

(Amendment Number 1), (the 2018 Plan) indicates the approved Plan of Development for the 

Sterling Lakes/Sierra Vista development prior to the latest round of proposed amendments 

with the exception of the tract along the south side of Meridiana Parkway and the east side of 

Sierra Vista Boulevard that was originally approved as single family residential.  The 2018 Plan 

indicated that tract as commercial in color but as number “2” as residential land use.  This 

discrepancy has held approval of a development plat for this tract (the Day Care Center) due to 

the conflict of land use approval. The 2018 Plan Amendment Number 1 was approved only to 

modify the alignment of Karsten Boulevard and related adjacent tract land use.  The proposed 

Amendment Number 3 has been submitted correct this issue (shown as 2.9 acre, commercial, 

number “5”), among other proposed modifications, and clarify the intent for this tract to be 

commercial, not single family residential. Amendment Number 2, the latest amendment, as 

recently approved by City Council, only modifies the Sterling Lakes North area of the overall 

development north of Cedar Rapids Parkway.  Amendment Number 3 has now been proposed 

as partially indicated in Figure 2_General Plan -markup.  Additionally, the proposed 

Amendment Number 3 General Plan indicates a change in land use for the area south of 

Meridiana Parkway and west of Crystal View Drive, a change in land use for the area south of 

Meridiana Parkway and east of Crystal View Drive including a 2.4 acre commercial tract 

correctly shown on the 2015 Plan and the 2018 Plan and now proposed to be a part of the 

indicated 4.1 acre commercial tract on the west side of Sierra Vista Boulevard.  Discussion with 

Stan Winter, the planning consultant for Land Tejas indicates the applicant wishes to remove 

from consideration the indicated change of land use for a tract labeled 9A west of Karsten 

Boulevard at the southeast corner of the Sierra Vista development and to remove from 

consideration the proposed change in the language of the Plan of Development document 

regarding a Townhouse land use appliable to tract 9A. 

 

 

Cop
y



 

 

 

REVIEW 

 

Staff review will discuss each of the 3 proposed plan changes individually. 

 

Proposed Change (1) – the area south of Meridiana Parkway and east of Sierra Vista Boulevard 

 

This 2.9-acre tract is located on the southeast corner of the intersection of Meridiana Parkway, 

a designated major arterial, and Sierra Vista Boulevard, a collector street.  A development plat 

has been submitted and has been deferred until the land use indicated on the Plan of 

Development agrees with the development plan.  Alternative access has been proposed with a 

connection to the south to facilitate site circulation. This proposed commercial use located at 

the intersection of a major arterial and a collector is in compliance with the City of Iowa Colony 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Proposed Change (2) – the area south of Meridiana Parkway and west of Crystal View Drive 

 

This area in the 2018 Plan is indicated as single family residential (25.5 acres) of both 50 feet 

wide lots and 60 feet wide lots.  The current proposal is to reduce the area of 50 feet wide lots 

and replace most of the 50 feet wide lot area with an 8.2-acre commercial tract leaving a 17.3 

acre remaining single family residential area.  The applicant has indicated the purpose for 

indicating a portion of this area as commercial is to provide a land use that is compatible with 

an existing manufactured building to be used as a temporary sales office (no overnight sleeping 

or residential use) that is currently non-compliant with the approved land use of single family 

residential.  However, the City Engineer indicates that the current existing manufactured 

building is located on the west side of Crystal View Drive near the street entry into Sierra Vista 

Sec 7.  That location would place the existing manufactured building outside the proposed 

commercial use area.  This location for proposed commercial use is located at the intersection 

of a major arterial and a collector and is in compliance with the City of Iowa Colony 

Comprehensive Plan.  Also, with the anticipated traffic demand on Crystal View Drive as the 

only access connection to Meridana Parkway (access via Ames Boulevard will come later), the 

use of this tract for commercial use is appropriate. 

 

Proposed Change (3) – the area south of Meridiana Parkway and between Crystal View Drive 

and Sierra Vista Boulevard 

 

This area indicated on the proposed Amendment Number 3 Plan includes a 4.1-acre tract and a 

9.4-acre tract for a total commercial area of 13.5 acres between Sierra Vista Boulevard and 

Crystal View Drive with frontage on Meridiana Parkway.  The 4.1-acre tract includes a 

previously approved 2.9-acre commercial tract.  Both Sierra Vista Boulevard and Crystal View 

Drive are considered collector streets providing significant traffic access between major 

arterials Meridiana Parkway, Ames Boulevard, and Davenport Parkway with approximately 600 

feet between Crystal View Drive and Sierra Vista Boulevard along Meridiana Parkway, a 

Cop
y



 

 

designated major arterial.  The provision of commercial corners at the intersection of major 

arterials and collectors is in conformance with the City of Iowa Colony Comprehensive Plan.  

Providing contiguous commercial property along a major arterial allows for the provision of 

alternative connected driveway locations parallel to the major arterial as direct access to a 

major arterial by cross median openings is limited to minimum spacing requirements. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Based on the information presented, Staff recommends the following: 

 

For Proposed Change (1) – that the proposed commercial use for this tract at this location be 

approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and recommended for approval by the City 

of Iowa Colony City Council; 

 

For Proposed Change (2) – that the proposed commercial use for this tract at this location be 

adjusted to include the location of the existing manufactured building with the resulting 

commercial tract having frontage on both Meridiana Parkway and Crystal View Drive.  Subject 

to this condition, the revised tract be approved for commercial use by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and recommended for approval by the City of Iowa Colony City Council; 

 

For Proposed Change (3) – that the commercial use for the two tracts indicated at this location 

be approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and recommended for approval by the 

City of Iowa Colony City Council. 

 

Note:  There are other modifications that have been made to the proposed Plan of 

Development, as submitted by the applicant, including a proposed change of use for Tract 9A, 

20.3 Acres (southeast corner of the Sierra  Vista development) as indicated on the 2018 

approved Plan of Development (Tract 9A indicated as “Swing” land use) and proposed 

modifications to the text in the proposed Plan of Development relating to a proposed 

Townhouse land use and removal of the “Swing” and “Multi-family” land use.  These proposed 

modifications have been removed from consideration by the applicant and are not submitted 

for review or approval. 

 

Therefore, Staff recommends “that the City of Iowa Colony Planning and Zoning Commission 

approve the proposed Plan of Development of Sterling Lakes at Iowa Colony and Sierra Vista 

Amendment Number 3, subject to the conditions indicated in the Staff Letter of 

Recommendation dated August 3, 2021, and that the Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommend approval by the City of Iowa Colony City Council for only the proposed changes 

indicated herein and no other”. 

 

J. Kent Marsh, AICP CUD 

City of Iowa Colony Staff Planner 

 

Cop
y



 

 

 

 

Attachments:  (1)  General Development Plan 11-20-2015; 

  (2)  Amended Plan of Development 05-01-2018 

   (3)  General Development Plan dated 05-01-2018, revised 01-04-2021;  

(4)  Compare Result 1.pdf; Cover Letter Revised.pdf; and  

(5)  Figure 2_General Plan -markup.pdf. 

 

 

Cop
y



 

EXHIBIT B 

PLAN of DEVELOPMENT 

Sterling Lakes at Iowa Colony 

And 

Sierra Vista 
 

 

 

A. Introduction. 

  

    

1. The property is comprised of 1,285.64 acres, consisting of residential and commercial uses 

with community facilities such as parks, lakes, trails, open space and other general public 

facilities.   

 

2. This PD includes the following sections: 

 

 General Provisions 

 Land Uses 

 Development Regulations for Single Family Lots 

 Development Regulations for Commercial Tract 

 Parks, Recreation and Trails 

 School and Community Facility Sites 

 Street Plan & Cross-Sections  

 Project Phasing 

 Specific Conditions 

 

B. General Provisions. 

 

1. The PD approved herein must be constructed, developed, and maintained in compliance with 

this Agreement and other applicable ordinances of the City.  If any provision or regulation of 

any City ordinance applicable in District MU (Mixed Use District) is not contained in this 

Agreement, all the regulations contained in the Development Code applicable to District MU 

in effect on the effective date of this Agreement apply to this PD as though written herein, 

except to the extent the City regulation or provision conflicts with a provision of this 

Agreement.   

In the event that there are discrepancies between the text of this document and the exhibits 

attached, the text shall prevail. 

 

2. The project shall be developed in accordance with the following figures that are attached to 

and made part of this PD: 

 

Figure 1:  Boundary Exhibit  

Figure 1a:  Jurisdiction Map  

Figure 2:  General Development Plan 

Figure 3:  Landscape and Open Space Plan 

Figure 4:  Thoroughfare Exhibit 

Figure 5:  Street cross section for Spine Road, (divided) 

Figure 6:  Street cross section for Spine Road, (undivided) 

Figure 7:  Phasing Plan of Development 

Cop
y



 2 

 

 

 

The project is located west of State Highway 288, between County Roads 573, Alloy Road 

and 64, Davenport Parkway.  The property is within the William Pettus Survey, H.T. & 

B.R.R. Company Survey No. 68, 288, and 289, Brazoria County, Texas.  As shown on Figure 

1a: Jurisdiction Map, parts of the proposed development lie within the City Limit, extra-

territorial jurisdiction of the City of Iowa Colony, and part of the site is only within the 

jurisdiction of Brazoria County. 

 

3. A homeowners’ association shall be established and made legally responsible to maintain all 

common areas, private streets, recreation reserves and community amenities not otherwise 

dedicated to the public.  All land and facilities dedicated to a Municipal Utility District shall 

be maintained by said District. 

 

4. All future building permits shall be reviewed for conformance with this PD. 

 

5. Access to Valley Glen Road (SH 288 frontage road) shall be limited to one public street or 

private non-exclusive driveway. The spacing of the intersection to Valley Glen Road shall be 

a minimum 1,200 feet apart and shall connect to another public street or an internal driveway 

network to provide mutual use, non-exclusive access to multiple users.  

 

An additional driveway connection to Valley Glen Road may be permitted no closer than 600 

feet apart with the approval of the Planning Commission upon review of a Traffic Impact 

Analysis, TIA, prepared specifically for the commercial use(s) proposed fronting on Valley 

Glen Road. The TIA shall: 

 Clearly show and distinguish between all existing, proposed and future facilities 

on the site 

 Clearly delineate and distinguish between all existing and proposed traffic 

improvements, including turn lanes 

 Show all applicable traffic counts at all existing and proposed intersections and 

driveways 

 Provide comparative analysis of ingress, egress and trip distribution pre and post 

development with and without the proposed driveway intersections on Valley 

Glen Road. 

 

 

 

C. Land Uses. 

 

1. Permitted land uses for tracts identified as Single Family Residential (SFR) on Figure 2 shall 

be those uses permitted within District SFR of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

2. Permitted land uses for the Commercial tract on Figure 2 shall be those uses permitted within 

District MU of the Zoning Ordinance. Any other commercial or non-residential use may be 

allowed, but only if the city council exercises its discretion to grant appropriate approval for 

said use. 

 

3. Permitted land uses for the tracts identified as “Swing” on Figure 2 shall be either of those 

uses permitted in District SFR or District MU of the Zoning Ordinance, including multi-

family and townhouse residential. 

a) Multi-Family Residential: Subject to City Council approval at the time multi-

family is proposed for development. 

1. Multi-Family use is limited to two separate projects with each project 

containing no more than 300 units. 

Cop
y



 3 

2. No building or structure shall exceed 3 stories or 45 feet. 

3. There shall be no more than 22 units per net platted acre.  Except that if 

all required parking is provided within a parking garage that is screened 

from view of any public street, there shall be no limit on density as long 

as the total number of units do not exceed 300 units. 

4. At least 50% of all required parking shall be covered parking. 

5. All surface parking lots shall be screened from view of any adjacent 

public streets with a minimum 3 foot berm or landscape hedge. 

6. A minimum 6% of the gross area of the site shall be required as 

landscaping. 

b) Townhouse Residential 

1. Townhouse Residential is limited to no more than 15 units to the acre 

2.  No building or structure shall exceed 35 feet. 

3. Front Yard: minimum 20 feet 

4. Rear Yard: minimum 10 feet, with a minimum 25 foot rear yard if the 

lot is backing to a street that is a major thoroughfare 

5. Side Yard: there shall be no less than a ten-foot side yard on the street 

side of a corner lot, with a minimum 25 foot side yard if the side street 

is a major thoroughfare. 

6. The minimum lot width shall be 25 feet. 

7. The minimum lot area shall be 2,250 square feet.  

8. A minimum 6% of the gross area of the site shall be required as open 

space / landscaping.  Off-street parking area, service drives, shall not be 

included in any calculation of the required open space. 

9. Guest parking shall be provided on the site at a minimum 1 space per 

every 6 units. 

4. Within the boundary of the proposed Plan of Development, a minimum 5% of the total project 

acreage (65 acres) will be required for Parks/Recreation/Open Space.  In addition, 

approximately 20 acres of land located outside the boundary of the Plan of Development shall 

be dedicated to the City as public park area.  Land used for public park area shall have a 

minimum frontage of 60 feet on a public street. Portions of open space that do not have any 

additional man-made improvements provided by the developer, such as hiking/running trail, 

benches or shelters that facilitate an active human recreational role will not be considered 

contributing to the minimum public park area requirement.  

Contributing open space areas must be adjacent to and/or have frontage on public street right-

of-way.  Landscape buffers adjacent to public street right-of-way must be at least fifteen (15) 

feet wide and contain an average density of (1) tree, a minimum caliper of one and one-half 

inch (1-1/2”) for every thirty (30’) feet of street frontage, or portion thereof, measured along 

the street-facing lot line in order to count to contributing open space.  The trees may be 

clustered or spaced linearly; they need not be placed evenly. 

 

5. Should the surface rights of any designated drill sites revert to the private land owner, and that 

land owner desires to sell that land, the City will have the first right-of-refusal to purchase the 

land formerly designated as drill site land at fair market value. 

 

 

D. Development Regulations for Single Family Lots – Maximum 3,320 lots permitted.  Lots less 

than 60 feet wide = maximum 65% of 3,320 lots or a maximum 2,158 lots.  (Maximum 808 lots at 

45 feet wide, maximum 955 lots at 50 feet wide and minimum 395 lots at 55 feet wide or greater)  

Lots 60 feet wide or greater = minimum of 35% of 3,320 lots or minimum 1,162 lots. (A minimum 

935 lots at 60 feet wide and a minimum 227 lots shall be greater than 60 feet wide) Single-family 

home sites within the PD shall be developed in accordance with the following regulations: 

 

 

1. Within the areas indicated as Area Type #1 on Figure 2; 

Cop
y



 4 

The minimum lot width shall be 45 feet wide. Except: the maximum percentage of lots less 

than 60 feet wide shall not exceed 65 percent of the total maximum number of lots. 

(Maximum 2,158 lots)  

 

No more than 808 lots shall be 45 feet wide. 

No more than 955 lots shall be 50 feet wide.  

 

2. No lots less than 50 feet wide shall be permitted south of County Road 56, Meridiana 

Parkway. 

 

3. Within the areas indicated as Area Type #2 on Figure 2, the minimum lot width shall be 60 

feet wide. A minimum 35 percent of the total maximum number of lots (Minimum 1,162 lots) 

shall be 60 feet wide or greater and at least 6.0% or 227 lots must be greater than 60 feet 

wide.  

 

4. Minimum lot depth:  110 feet or 90 feet for lots fronting on the bulb portion of a cul-de-sac. 

 

5. Maximum lot coverage:  Sixty (60%) percent calculated as the ground covered by building 

structures, principal or accessory, of the gross lot surface area. 

 

6. Maximum height:  Two (2) stories.  Roof gables, chimneys, and vent stacks may extend to a 

height not to exceed 35 feet above the average level of the base of the foundation of the 

building.  Height regulations prescribed herein shall not apply to satellite earth station 

antennas or any personal communication electronic facilities protected by the Federal 

Telecommunications Act of 1996. 

 

7. Minimum front yard building setback:  25 feet; 20 feet on cul-de-sac bulbs as measured from 

the front property / right-of-way line. 

 

8. Minimum side yard building setbacks:  5 feet for interior, non-corner lots and the non-street 

side of corner lots; 10 feet exterior side yard for corner lots if a minimum fifteen (15) feet by 

fifteen (15) feet visibility triangle, as measured from the property line / street right-of-way 

line, that restricts the placement or maintenance of any vertical obstruction, either natural or 

man-made, within a vertical distance of between three (3) feet and eight (8) feet of the natural 

ground elevation, is provided on the platted lot subdivision at any street, public or private, 

intersection.  A street side setback of twenty-five (25) feet minimum will be required for all 

lots siding on a designated major arterial, minor arterial or major collector. 

 

9. Minimum rear yard building setback:  10 feet, except when the rear utility easement width is 

greater than ten (10) feet, the greater width is the minimum rear yard building setback.  When 

a lot or a reserve is either directly adjacent to a major or minor arterial right-of-way or directly 

adjacent to a reserve less than fifteen (15) feet wide that is adjacent to a major or minor 

arterial, the minimum rear yard building setback is twenty –five (25) feet measured from the 

street right-of-way line and a minimum of ten (10) feet from the rear property line.  When a 

residential lots backs to a designated major or minor arterial and a detached one-story garage 

is constructed on the residential lot, the rear yard between the detached one-story garage and 

the rear property line may be reduced to a minimum of three ( 3) feet if a minimum of twenty 

–five (25) feet is maintained between the rear of the one-story detached garage and the right-

of-way line of the major or minor arterial. 

 

10. All lots shall have a minimum of two (2) trees, planted in the front yard setback.  The trees 

must be a minimum of one and one-half (1-1/2) inches in caliper width and a minimum height 

of six (6) feet as measured at the tree trunk from the ground as planted.  The trees must be 

located between five (5) feet and fifteen (15) feet from a side lot line and between five (5) feet 

and twenty (20) feet from the front property line with a minimum of ten (10) feet between tree 

trucks.  

Cop
y



 5 

   

 

E. Development Regulations for Commercial Tract – Area regulations, yard requirements, and 

maximum lot coverage, height, and floor area per District MU in the Zoning Ordinance shall apply 

to the Commercial tract within the PD.  At the time of the preliminary plat of any commercial 

land, a draft of the protective covenants whereby the Developer proposes to regulate the use of the 

land shall be submitted to the City.  The restrictive covenants, conditions or limitations shall never 

be less than the minimum requirements of the City as specified in the City’s applicable 

ordinance(s). 

 

 

F. Parks, Recreation and Trails – As shown on Figure 3, an integrated network of open space and 

recreational amenities shall be provided in accordance with the following regulations: 

 

1. A landscape buffer with a minimum 15-foot width shall be located along each side of the 

central spine road, as shown on Figure 3, where lots side or rear to the spine road.  The buffer 

is in addition to the minimum street right-of-way width and shall include trees, benches, 

plazas and landscape screening.  No on-street parking will be allowed along the designated 

spine road. 

  

2. Recreational sites will be strategically located along the central spine road, and shall include 

the following:  

 

(a) A recreational site north of Meridiana Parkway (County Road 56) near the main project 

entry shall include water recreation i.e., “splash pad”, and a swimming pool with dressing 

rooms, playground and picnic facilities. 

(b) A recreational site south of Meridiana Parkway (County Road 56) near the main project 

entry shall include a club building that provides a meeting place for the community, 

swimming pool with dressing rooms, playground and picnic facilities. 

(c) A recreational site north of Cedar Rapids Parkway (County Road 57).  

(d) Additional Recreation Sites, strategically located near the entries of various 

neighborhood pods, as shown on Figure 2. A contributing park, recreation and/or open 

space area must be located a maximum of one-quarter (1/4) mile from all residential lots. 

(e) A contributing park / recreation / open space area of a minimum area of one-quarter (1/4) 

acre must be contained within each private gated section. 

(f) In addition to the three recreation sites identified above, six additional recreation sites 

shall be provided with the following minimum improvements.  

- Recreation sites shall provide a variety of recreation uses both 

passive and active.  At a minimum, a recreation site shall include a 

paved plaza area a minimum of 500 square feet and shall include a 

decorative paving pattern. 

- Each site shall include at least 2 benches, 2 shade trees, a drinking 

fountain and bicycle parking.  Bicycle parking shall include racks or 

other structures intended for parking bicycles, with a minimum of 4 

spaces. 

- At least 2 parks shall include ball field facilities for informal play, 

including baseball back stops and soccer goals. 

- At least 1 park shall include a fenced area with double gates for use 

as a dog park. 

 

 

3. On-site storm water detention designed as permanent lakes will be provided within the 

project, providing additional open space with recreational amenities.  A large lake will be 

located near the project entry. 

Contributing open space areas shall include the area of the permanent water surface and the 

adjacent side slopes, at a maximum slope of 5:1, for the permanent lake with a minimum 

Cop
y



 6 

water depth of six (6) feet beyond the slope transition.  On-site storm water detention area that 

do not contain a permanent lake area or do not contain permanent man-made improvements, 

such as hike/bike trails with benches/structures, and that are not accessible with a minimum of 

one access point directly from a street (public or private) will not be included in the 

calculation for the minimum amount of required parks / recreation / open space. 

 

(a) A minimum of two (2) view corridors per lake with an unobstructed view from the 

adjacent streets with a minimum combined width of 60 feet, per lake, shall be provided to 

each permanent lake. The minimum width of a single view corridor is 20 feet.  Views to 

the permanent lakes from the view corridors shall not be obstructed by fences, structures, 

screening or landscaping that would prevent seeing the lake area. 

(b) View corridors shall be separated by a minimum of one thousand (1,000) feet as 

measured along the lake water edge.  Unless the lake is less than one thousand (1,000) 

feet in length in which case the view corridors shall be separated by at least 4/5 the total 

length of the lake. 

(c) A concrete pedestrian path a minimum of five (5) feet in width shall connect the required 

street sidewalk with the lake water edge. 

 

4. Minimum 4-foot width sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of local residential 

streets. All sidewalks shall be constructed in accordance with the City of Iowa Colony 

standard details and shall meet the State of Texas ADA standards.   

 

5. Minimum 5-foot width sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of major arterials, 

minor arterials, major collectors and the central spine road (as depicted in Figure 4 

attached) within and adjacent to the property.  At the discretion of the developer, a six-foot 

wide sidewalk may be constructed on only one side of the right-of-way in lieu of two 5 foot 

wide sidewalks on both sides of the right-of-way.  In either case, the sidewalks may 

meander out of the right-of-way and into an adjacent landscape reserve if so provided. 

 

 

 

G. School and Community Facility Sites  

 

1. As shown on Figure 2, in addition to the existing fifteen (15) acre elementary school site an 

additional fifteen (15) acre elementary school site shall be provided for purchase at the option 

of the Alvin Independent School District. If the AISD chooses not to purchase the site, the site 

is limited to the same uses as for tracts identified as Single Family Residential (SFR) on 

Figure 2.  In addition a 39 acre site located outside the proposed Plan of Development shall be 

provided by the Developer for purchase at the option of the Alvin Independent School district 

for a junior high school site. 

2. At no cost to the City of Iowa Colony, a 4.66 acre site located south of CR 56, and west of CR 

383 shall be provided to the City, for the purpose of an EMS / Fire Station Site. As the land 

adjacent to the 4.66 acres provided to the City become available for development, the land 

shall be offered to the City of Iowa Colony as a first right-of-refusal at fair market value.  

 

 

H. Street Plan and Cross Sections. 

 

1. Street improvements shall be built in phases as the project develops in accordance with the 

City’s Engineering Design Criteria Manual, Developers Agreement, street plan and cross 

sections listed below.  

 

 Figure 4: Thoroughfare Exhibit 

 Figure 5: Street cross section for the spine road (divided) and greenbelt 

 Figure 6: Street cross section for the spine road (undivided) and greenbelt 

 

Cop
y



 7 

 

 

I. Project Phasing – Figure 7 indicates the general time and location of the proposed development 

phasing.  The precise dates of each phase is subject to change due to general economic variables 

and market demand. 

 

 

J. Specific Conditions – Implementation of this master-planned community will require 

consideration of site conditions that necessitate granting the following variances from specific 

sections of the Subdivision Ordinance and Engineering Design Criteria Manual: 

 

 

1. Section 36 (D):  No block shall exceed a length of one thousand two hundred (1,200) feet in 

residential or commercial developments. 

 

All streets within the gated areas shall be private and access will be limited to local residential 

traffic only.  Entry points will be limited for security purposes.  Consequently, streets will not 

be stubbed to adjacent acreage, resulting in external block lengths greater than 1,200 feet.  

Some internal blocks will exceed 1,200 feet, to a maximum distance of 2,600 feet, to 

accommodate detention lakes and reserves.    This variance does not apply to areas of the 

development that do not include private residential streets.  

 

 

 

2. Section37 (B)(5):  Access to Public Streets.  The subdividing of land shall be such as to 

provide each lot with satisfactory access to a public street. 

 

All the streets in the gated portions of the community will be private with access limited to 

local traffic only.  Gated private street neighborhoods will connect to public streets.  All gated 

sections containing more than 35 lots shall have at least two connections to a public street.  If 

a future second point of access is not yet constructed a temporary connection shall be 

provided until the permanent connection is constructed.  All private streets will be constructed 

to the City’s public street standards.  A homeowners’ association will assume all 

responsibility to repair and maintain the private streets.  As such, the adherence to this 

requirement for the private street portions of the development will not be required. 

 

 

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



 

EXHIBIT B 

PLAN of DEVELOPMENT 

Sterling Lakes at Iowa Colony 

And 

Sierra Vista 
 

 

 

A. Introduction. 

  

    

1. The property is comprised of 1,285.64 acres, consisting of residential and commercial uses 

with community facilities such as parks, lakes, trails, open space and other general public 

facilities.   

 

2. This PD includes the following sections: 

 

• General Provisions 

• Land Uses 

• Development Regulations for Single Family Lots 

• Development Regulations for Commercial Tract 

• Parks, Recreation and Trails 

• School and Community Facility Sites 

• Street Plan & Cross-Sections  

• Project Phasing 

• Specific Conditions 

 

B. General Provisions. 

 

1. The PD approved herein must be constructed, developed, and maintained in compliance with 

this Agreement and other applicable ordinances of the City.  If any provision or regulation of 

any City ordinance applicable in District MU (Mixed Use District) is not contained in this 

Agreement, all the regulations contained in the Development Code applicable to District MU 

in effect on the effective date of this Agreement apply to this PD as though written herein, 

except to the extent the City regulation or provision conflicts with a provision of this 

Agreement.   

In the event that there are discrepancies between the text of this document and the exhibits 

attached, the text shall prevail. 

 

2. The project shall be developed in accordance with the following figures that are attached to 

and made part of this PD: 

 

Figure 1:  Boundary Exhibit  

Figure 1a:  Jurisdiction Map  

Figure 2:  General Development Plan 

Figure 3:  Landscape and Open Space Plan 

Figure 4:  Thoroughfare Exhibit 

Figure 5:  Street cross section for Spine Road, (divided) 

Figure 6:  Street cross section for Spine Road, (undivided) 

Figure 7:  Pedestrian cross section and detail. 

Cop
y



 

 2

Figure 8:  Sterling Lakes North General Plan. 

Figure 9:  Phasing Plan of Development. 

 

 

The project is located west of State Highway 288, between County Roads 573, Alloy Road 

and 64, Davenport Parkway.  The property is within the William Pettus Survey, H.T. & 

B.R.R. Company Survey No. 68, 288, and 289, Brazoria County, Texas.  As shown on Figure 

1a: Jurisdiction Map, parts of the proposed development lie within the City Limit, extra-

territorial jurisdiction of the City of Iowa Colony. 

 

3. A homeowners’ association shall be established and made legally responsible to maintain all 

common areas, private streets, recreation reserves and community amenities not otherwise 

dedicated to the public.  All land and facilities dedicated to a Municipal Utility District shall 

be maintained by said District. 

 

4. All future building permits shall be reviewed for conformance with this PD. 

 

5. Access to Valley Glen Road (SH 288 frontage road) shall be limited to one public street or 

private non-exclusive driveway. The spacing of the intersection to Valley Glen Road shall be 

a minimum 1,200 feet apart and shall connect to another public street or an internal driveway 

network to provide mutual use, non-exclusive access to multiple users.  

 

An additional driveway connection to Valley Glen Road may be permitted no closer than 600 

feet apart with the approval of the Planning Commission upon review of a Traffic Impact 

Analysis, TIA, prepared specifically for the commercial use(s) proposed fronting on Valley 

Glen Road. The TIA shall: 

• Clearly show and distinguish between all existing, proposed and future facilities 

on the site 

• Clearly delineate and distinguish between all existing and proposed traffic 

improvements, including turn lanes 

• Show all applicable traffic counts at all existing and proposed intersections and 

driveways 

• Provide comparative analysis of ingress, egress and trip distribution pre and post 

development with and without the proposed driveway intersections on Valley 

Glen Road. 

 

 

 

C. Land Uses. 

 

1. Permitted land uses for tracts identified as Single Family Residential (SFR) on Figure 2 shall 

be those uses permitted within District SFR of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

2. Permitted land uses for the Commercial tract on Figure 2 shall be those uses permitted within 

District MU of the Zoning Ordinance. Any other commercial or non-residential use may be 

allowed, but only if the city council exercises its discretion to grant appropriate approval for 

said use. 

 

3. Permitted land uses for the tracts identified as “SwingTownhouse” on Figure 2 shall be either 

of those uses permitted in District SFR or District MU ofmeet the Zoning Ordinance, 

including multi-family and townhouse residential.following requirements: 

a) Multi-Family Residential: Subject to City Council approval at the time multi-

family is proposed for development. 

1. Multi-Family use is limited to two separate projects with each project 

containing no more than 300 units. 

Cop
y



 

 3

2. No building or structure shall exceed 3 stories or 45 feet. 

3. There shall be no more than 22 units per net platted acre.  Except that if 

all required parking is provided within a parking garage that is screened 

from view of any public street, there shall be no limit on density as long 

as the total number of units do not exceed 300 units. 

4. At least 50% of all required parking shall be covered parking. 

5. All surface parking lots shall be screened from view of any adjacent 

public streets with a minimum 3 foot berm or landscape hedge. 

6. A minimum 6% of the gross area of the site shall be required as 

landscaping. 

b) Townhouse Residential 

1. Townhouse Residential is limited to no more than 15 units to the acre 

2.  No building or structure shall exceed 35 feet. 

3. Front Yard: minimum 20 feet 

4. Rear Yard: minimum 10 feet, with a minimum 25 foot rear yard if the 

lot is backing to a street that is a major thoroughfare 

5. Side Yard: there shall be no less than a ten-foot side yard on the street 

side of a corner lot, with a minimum 25 foot side yard if the side street 

is a major thoroughfare. 

6. The minimum lot width shall be 25 feet. 

7. The minimum lot area shall be 2,250 square feet.  

8. A minimum 6% of the gross area of the site shall be required as open 

space / landscaping.  Off-street parking area, service drives, shall not be 

included in any calculation of the required open space. 

9. Guest parking shall be provided on the site at a minimum 1 space per 

every 6 units. 

4. Within the boundary of the proposed Plan of Development, a minimum 5% of the total project 

acreage (65 acres) will be required for Parks/Recreation/Open Space.  In addition, 

approximately 20 acres of land located outside the boundary of the Plan of Development shall 

be dedicated to the City as public park area.  Land used for public park area shall have a 

minimum frontage of 60 feet on a public street. Portions of open space that do not have any 

additional man-made improvements provided by the developer, such as hiking/running trail, 

benches or shelters that facilitate an active human recreational role will not be considered 

contributing to the minimum public park area requirement.  

Contributing open space areas must be adjacent to and/or have frontage on public street right-

of-way.  Landscape buffers adjacent to public street right-of-way must be at least fifteen (15) 

feet wide and contain an average density of (1) tree, a minimum caliper of one and one-half 

inch (1-1/2”) for every thirty (30’) feet of street frontage, or portion thereof, measured along 

the street-facing lot line in order to count to contributing open space.  The trees may be 

clustered or spaced linearly; they need not be placed evenly. 

 

5. Should the surface rights of any designated drill sites revert to the private land owner, and that 

land owner desires to sell that land, the City will have the first right-of-refusal to purchase the 

land formerly designated as drill site land at fair market value. 

 

 

D. Development Regulations for Single Family Lots – Maximum 2,800 lots permitted.  Lots less 

than 60 feet wide = maximum 65% of 2,800 lots or a maximum 1,820 lots.  (Maximum 808 lots at 

45 feet wide, maximum 955 lots at 50 feet wide) Lots 60 feet wide or greater = minimum of 35% 

of total lots and a minimum 6% of the total lots shall be greater than 60 feet wide.  Single-family 

home sites within the PD shall be developed in accordance with the following regulations: 

 

 

1. Within the areas indicated as Area Type #1 on Figure 2; 

Cop
y



 

 4

The minimum lot width shall be 45 feet wide. Except: the maximum percentage of lots less 

than 60 feet wide shall not exceed 65 percent of the total maximum number of lots. 

(Maximum 1,820 lots)  

 

No more than 808 lots shall be 45 feet wide. 

No more than 955 lots shall be 50 feet wide.  

 

2. No lots less than 50 feet wide shall be permitted south of County Road 56, Meridiana 

Parkway. 

 

3. Within the areas indicated as Area Type #2 on Figure 2, the minimum lot width shall be 60 

feet wide. A minimum 35 percent of the total maximum number of lots shall be 60 feet wide 

or greater and at least 6.0% must be greater than 60 feet wide.  

 

4. Minimum lot depth:  110 feet or 90 feet for lots fronting on the bulb portion of a cul-de-sac. 

 

5. Maximum lot coverage:  Sixty (60%) percent calculated as the ground covered by building 

structures, principal or accessory, of the gross lot surface area. 

 

6. Maximum height:  Two (2) stories.  Roof gables, chimneys, and vent stacks may extend to a 

height not to exceed 35 feet above the average level of the base of the foundation of the 

building.  Height regulations prescribed herein shall not apply to satellite earth station 

antennas or any personal communication electronic facilities protected by the Federal 

Telecommunications Act of 1996. 

 

7. Minimum front yard building setback:  25 feet; 20 feet on cul-de-sac bulbs as measured from 

the front property / right-of-way line. 

 

8. Minimum side yard building setbacks:  5 feet for interior, non-corner lots and the non-street 

side of corner lots; 10 feet exterior side yard for corner lots if a minimum fifteen (15) feet by 

fifteen (15) feet visibility triangle, as measured from the property line / street right-of-way 

line, that restricts the placement or maintenance of any vertical obstruction, either natural or 

man-made, within a vertical distance of between three (3) feet and eight (8) feet of the natural 

ground elevation, is provided on the platted lot subdivision at any street, public or private, 

intersection.  A street side setback of twenty-five (25) feet minimum will be required for all 

lots siding on a designated major arterial, minor arterial or major collector. 

 

9. Minimum rear yard building setback:  10 feet, except when the rear utility easement width is 

greater than ten (10) feet, the greater width is the minimum rear yard building setback.  When 

a lot or a reserve is either directly adjacent to a major or minor arterial right-of-way or directly 

adjacent to a reserve less than fifteen (15) feet wide that is adjacent to a major or minor 

arterial, the minimum rear yard building setback is twenty –five (25) feet measured from the 

street right-of-way line and a minimum of ten (10) feet from the rear property line.  When a 

residential lots backs to a designated major or minor arterial and a detached one-story garage 

is constructed on the residential lot, the rear yard between the detached one-story garage and 

the rear property line may be reduced to a minimum of three ( 3) feet if a minimum of twenty 

–five (25) feet is maintained between the rear of the one-story detached garage and the right-

of-way line of the major or minor arterial. 

 

10. All lots shall have a minimum of two (2) trees, planted in the front yard setback.  The trees 

must be a minimum of one and one-half (1-1/2) inches in caliper width and a minimum height 

of six (6) feet as measured at the tree trunk from the ground as planted.  The trees must be 

located between five (5) feet and fifteen (15) feet from a side lot line and between five (5) feet 

and twenty (20) feet from the front property line with a minimum of ten (10) feet between tree 

trucks.  

   

Cop
y



 

 5

 

E. Development Regulations for Commercial Tract – Area regulations, yard requirements, and 

maximum lot coverage, height, and floor area per District MU in the Zoning Ordinance shall apply 

to the Commercial tract within the PD.  At the time of the preliminary plat of any commercial 

land, a draft of the protective covenants whereby the Developer proposes to regulate the use of the 

land shall be submitted to the City.  The restrictive covenants, conditions or limitations shall never 

be less than the minimum requirements of the City as specified in the City’s applicable 

ordinance(s). 

 

 

F. Parks, Recreation and Trails – As shown on Figure 3, an integrated network of open space and 

recreational amenities shall be provided in accordance with the following regulations: 

 

1. A landscape buffer with a minimum 15-foot width shall be located along each side of the 

central spine road, as shown on Figure 3, where lots side or rear to the spine road.  The buffer 

is in addition to the minimum street right-of-way width and shall include trees, benches, 

plazas and landscape screening.  No on-street parking will be allowed along the designated 

spine road. 

  

2. Recreational sites will be strategically located along the central spine road, and shall include 

the following:  

 

(a) A recreational site north of Meridiana Parkway (County Road 56) near the main project 

entry shall include water recreation i.e., “splash pad”, and a swimming pool with dressing 

rooms, playground and picnic facilities. 

(b) A recreational site south of Meridiana Parkway (County Road 56) near the main project 

entry. 

(c) A recreational site north of Cedar Rapids Parkway (County Road 57) shall include a 

swimming pool and splash pad, with dressing rooms, playground and picnic facilities.  

(d) Additional Recreation Sites, strategically located near the entries of various 

neighborhood pods, as shown on Figure 2. A contributing park, recreation and/or open 

space area must be located a maximum of one-quarter (1/4) mile from all residential lots. 

(e) A contributing park / recreation / open space area of a minimum area of one-quarter (1/4) 

acre must be contained within each private gated section. 

(f) In addition to the three recreation sites identified above, six additional recreation sites 

shall be provided with the following minimum improvements.  

- Recreation sites shall provide a variety of recreation uses both 

passive and active.  At a minimum, a recreation site shall include a 

paved plaza area a minimum of 500 square feet and shall include a 

decorative paving pattern. 

- Each site shall include at least 2 benches, 2 shade trees, a drinking 

fountain and bicycle parking.  Bicycle parking shall include racks or 

other structures intended for parking bicycles, with a minimum of 4 

spaces. 

- At least 2 parks shall include ball field facilities for informal play, 

including baseball back stops and soccer goals. 

- At least 1 park shall include a fenced area with double gates for use 

as a dog park. 

 

 

3. On-site storm water detention designed as permanent lakes will be provided within the 

project, providing additional open space with recreational amenities.  A large lake will be 

located near the project entry. 

Contributing open space areas shall include the area of the permanent water surface and the 

adjacent side slopes, at a maximum slope of 5:1, for the permanent lake with a minimum 

water depth of six (6) feet beyond the slope transition.  On-site storm water detention area that 

Cop
y



 

 6

do not contain a permanent lake area or do not contain permanent man-made improvements, 

such as hike/bike trails with benches/structures, and that are not accessible with a minimum of 

one access point directly from a street (public or private) will not be included in the 

calculation for the minimum amount of required parks / recreation / open space. 

 

(a) A minimum of two (2) view corridors per lake with an unobstructed view from the 

adjacent streets with a minimum combined width of 60 feet, per lake, shall be provided to 

each permanent lake. The minimum width of a single view corridor is 20 feet.  Views to 

the permanent lakes from the view corridors shall not be obstructed by fences, structures, 

screening or landscaping that would prevent seeing the lake area. 

(b) View corridors shall be separated by a minimum of one thousand (1,000) feet as 

measured along the lake water edge.  Unless the lake is less than one thousand (1,000) 

feet in length in which case the view corridors shall be separated by at least 4/5 the total 

length of the lake. 

(c) A concrete pedestrian path a minimum of five (5) feet in width shall connect the required 

street sidewalk with the lake water edge. 

 

4. Minimum 4-foot width sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of local residential 

streets. All sidewalks shall be constructed in accordance with the City of Iowa Colony 

standard details and shall meet the State of Texas ADA standards.   

 

5. Minimum 5-foot width sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of major arterials, 

minor arterials, major collectors and the central spine road (as depicted in Figure 4 

attached) within and adjacent to the property.  At the discretion of the developer, a six-foot 

wide sidewalk may be constructed on only one side of the right-of-way in lieu of two 5 foot 

wide sidewalks on both sides of the right-of-way.  In either case, the sidewalks may 

meander out of the right-of-way and into an adjacent landscape reserve if so provided. 

 

 

 

G. School and Community Facility Sites  

 

1. As shown on Figure 2, an approximate forty-eight acre elementary and junior high school site 

shall be provided for purchase at the option of the Alvin Independent School District. If the 

AISD chooses not to purchase the site, the site is limited to the same uses as for tracts 

identified as Single Family Residential (SFR) on Figure 2. 

2. At no cost to the City of Iowa Colony, a 4.66 acre site located south of CR 56, and west of CR 

383 shall be provided to the City, for the purpose of an EMS / Fire Station Site. As the land 

adjacent to the 4.66 acres provided to the City become available for development, the land 

shall be offered to the City of Iowa Colony as a first right-of-refusal at fair market value.  

 

 

H. Street Plan and Cross Sections. 

 

1. Street improvements shall be built in phases as the project develops in accordance with the 

City’s Engineering Design Criteria Manual, Developers Agreement, street plan and cross 

sections listed below.  

 

• Figure 4: Thoroughfare Exhibit 

• Figure 5: Street cross section for the spine road (divided) and greenbelt 

• Figure 6: Street cross section for the spine road (undivided) and greenbelt 

 

 

 

Cop
y



 

 7

I. Project Phasing – Figure 7 indicates the general time and location of the proposed development 

phasing.  The precise dates of each phase is subject to change due to general economic variables 

and market demand. 

 

 

J. Specific Conditions – Implementation of this master-planned community will require 

consideration of site conditions that necessitate granting the following variances from specific 

sections of the Subdivision Ordinance and Engineering Design Criteria Manual: 

 

 

1. Section 36 (D):  No block shall exceed a length of one thousand two hundred (1,200) feet in 

residential or commercial developments. 

 

All streets within the gated areas shall be private and access will be limited to local residential 

traffic only.  Entry points will be limited for security purposes.  Consequently, streets will not 

be stubbed to adjacent acreage, resulting in external block lengths greater than 1,200 feet.  

Some internal blocks will exceed 1,200 feet, to a maximum distance of 2,600 feet, to 

accommodate detention lakes and reserves.    This variance does not apply to areas of the 

development that do not include private residential streets.  

 

 

 

2. Section37 (B)(5):  Access to Public Streets.  The subdividing of land shall be such as to 

provide each lot with satisfactory access to a public street. 

 

All the streets in the gated portions of the community will be private with access limited to 

local traffic only.  Gated private street neighborhoods will connect to public streets.  All gated 

sections containing more than 35 lots shall have at least two connections to a public street.  If 

a future second point of access is not yet constructed a temporary connection shall be 

provided until the permanent connection is constructed.  All private streets will be constructed 

to the City’s public street standards.  A homeowners’ association will assume all 

responsibility to repair and maintain the private streets.  As such, the adherence to this 

requirement for the private street portions of the development will not be required. 

 

 

Cop
y



Cop
y

SRW2
Highlight

SRW2
Callout
Revise General Development Plan to Extend Commercial Uses along the south side of Meridiana Drive.



 
EXHIBIT B 

PLAN of DEVELOPMENT 

Sterling Lakes at Iowa Colony 
And 

Sierra Vista 
 
 
 
A. Introduction. 
  

    
1. The property is comprised of 1,285.64 acres, consisting of residential and commercial uses 

with community facilities such as parks, lakes, trails, open space and other general public 
facilities.   

 
2. This PD includes the following sections: 

 
 General Provisions 
 Land Uses 
 Development Regulations for Single Family Lots 
 Development Regulations for Commercial Tract 
 Parks, Recreation and Trails 
 School and Community Facility Sites 
 Street Plan & Cross-Sections  
 Project Phasing 
 Specific Conditions 

 
B. General Provisions. 
 

1. The PD approved herein must be constructed, developed, and maintained in compliance with 
this Agreement and other applicable ordinances of the City.  If any provision or regulation of 
any City ordinance applicable in District MU (Mixed Use District) is not contained in this 
Agreement, all the regulations contained in the Development Code applicable to District MU 
in effect on the effective date of this Agreement apply to this PD as though written herein, 
except to the extent the City regulation or provision conflicts with a provision of this 
Agreement.   
In the event that there are discrepancies between the text of this document and the exhibits 
attached, the text shall prevail. 
 

2. The project shall be developed in accordance with the following figures that are attached to 
and made part of this PD: 
 
Figure 1:  Boundary Exhibit  
Figure 1a:  Jurisdiction Map  
Figure 2:  General Development Plan 
Figure 3:  Landscape and Open Space Plan 
Figure 4:  Thoroughfare Exhibit 
Figure 5:  Street cross section for Spine Road, (divided) 
Figure 6:  Street cross section for Spine Road, (undivided) 
Figure 7:  Pedestrian cross section and detail. 

Cop
y



 2 

Figure 8:  Sterling Lakes North General Plan. 
Figure 9:  Phasing Plan of Development. 
 
 
The project is located west of State Highway 288, between County Roads 573, Alloy Road 
and 64, Davenport Parkway.  The property is within the William Pettus Survey, H.T. & 
B.R.R. Company Survey No. 68, 288, and 289, Brazoria County, Texas.  As shown on Figure 
1a: Jurisdiction Map, parts of the proposed development lie within the City Limit, extra-
territorial jurisdiction of the City of Iowa Colony. 
 

3. A homeowners’ association shall be established and made legally responsible to maintain all 
common areas, private streets, recreation reserves and community amenities not otherwise 
dedicated to the public.  All land and facilities dedicated to a Municipal Utility District shall 
be maintained by said District. 

 
4. All future building permits shall be reviewed for conformance with this PD. 
 
5. Access to Valley Glen Road (SH 288 frontage road) shall be limited to one public street or 

private non-exclusive driveway. The spacing of the intersection to Valley Glen Road shall be 
a minimum 1,200 feet apart and shall connect to another public street or an internal driveway 
network to provide mutual use, non-exclusive access to multiple users.  

 
An additional driveway connection to Valley Glen Road may be permitted no closer than 600 
feet apart with the approval of the Planning Commission upon review of a Traffic Impact 
Analysis, TIA, prepared specifically for the commercial use(s) proposed fronting on Valley 
Glen Road. The TIA shall: 

 Clearly show and distinguish between all existing, proposed and future facilities 
on the site 

 Clearly delineate and distinguish between all existing and proposed traffic 
improvements, including turn lanes 

 Show all applicable traffic counts at all existing and proposed intersections and 
driveways 

 Provide comparative analysis of ingress, egress and trip distribution pre and post 
development with and without the proposed driveway intersections on Valley 
Glen Road. 

 
 
 
C. Land Uses. 

 
1. Permitted land uses for tracts identified as Single Family Residential (SFR) on Figure 2 shall 

be those uses permitted within District SFR of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. Permitted land uses for the Commercial tract on Figure 2 shall be those uses permitted within 
District MU of the Zoning Ordinance. Any other commercial or non-residential use may be 
allowed, but only if the city council exercises its discretion to grant appropriate approval for 
said use. 

 
3. Permitted land uses for the tracts identified as “Townhouse” on Figure 2 shall meet the 

following requirements: 
1. Townhouse Residential is limited to no more than 15 units to the acre 
2.  No building or structure shall exceed 35 feet. 
3. Front Yard: minimum 20 feet 
4. Rear Yard: minimum 10 feet, with a minimum 25 foot rear yard if the 

lot is backing to a street that is a major thoroughfare 

Cop
y



 3 

5. Side Yard: there shall be no less than a ten-foot side yard on the street 
side of a corner lot, with a minimum 25 foot side yard if the side street 
is a major thoroughfare. 

6. The minimum lot width shall be 25 feet. 
7. The minimum lot area shall be 2,250 square feet.  
8. A minimum 6% of the gross area of the site shall be required as open 

space / landscaping.  Off-street parking area, service drives, shall not be 
included in any calculation of the required open space. 

9. Guest parking shall be provided on the site at a minimum 1 space per 
every 6 units. 

4. Within the boundary of the proposed Plan of Development, a minimum 5% of the total project 
acreage (65 acres) will be required for Parks/Recreation/Open Space.  In addition, 
approximately 20 acres of land located outside the boundary of the Plan of Development shall 
be dedicated to the City as public park area.  Land used for public park area shall have a 
minimum frontage of 60 feet on a public street. Portions of open space that do not have any 
additional man-made improvements provided by the developer, such as hiking/running trail, 
benches or shelters that facilitate an active human recreational role will not be considered 
contributing to the minimum public park area requirement.  
Contributing open space areas must be adjacent to and/or have frontage on public street right-
of-way.  Landscape buffers adjacent to public street right-of-way must be at least fifteen (15) 
feet wide and contain an average density of (1) tree, a minimum caliper of one and one-half 
inch (1-1/2”) for every thirty (30’) feet of street frontage, or portion thereof, measured along 
the street-facing lot line in order to count to contributing open space.  The trees may be 
clustered or spaced linearly; they need not be placed evenly. 
 

5. Should the surface rights of any designated drill sites revert to the private land owner, and that 
land owner desires to sell that land, the City will have the first right-of-refusal to purchase the 
land formerly designated as drill site land at fair market value. 
 

 
D. Development Regulations for Single Family Lots – Maximum 2,800 lots permitted.  Lots less 

than 60 feet wide = maximum 65% of 2,800 lots or a maximum 1,820 lots.  (Maximum 808 lots at 
45 feet wide, maximum 955 lots at 50 feet wide) Lots 60 feet wide or greater = minimum of 35% 
of total lots and a minimum 6% of the total lots shall be greater than 60 feet wide.  Single-family 
home sites within the PD shall be developed in accordance with the following regulations: 

 
 

1. Within the areas indicated as Area Type #1 on Figure 2; 
The minimum lot width shall be 45 feet wide. Except: the maximum percentage of lots less 
than 60 feet wide shall not exceed 65 percent of the total maximum number of lots. 
(Maximum 1,820 lots)  

 
No more than 808 lots shall be 45 feet wide. 
No more than 955 lots shall be 50 feet wide.  

 
2. No lots less than 50 feet wide shall be permitted south of County Road 56, Meridiana 

Parkway. 
 

3. Within the areas indicated as Area Type #2 on Figure 2, the minimum lot width shall be 60 
feet wide. A minimum 35 percent of the total maximum number of lots shall be 60 feet wide 
or greater and at least 6.0% must be greater than 60 feet wide.  

 
4. Minimum lot depth:  110 feet or 90 feet for lots fronting on the bulb portion of a cul-de-sac. 
 
5. Maximum lot coverage:  Sixty (60%) percent calculated as the ground covered by building 

structures, principal or accessory, of the gross lot surface area. 

Cop
y



 4 

 
6. Maximum height:  Two (2) stories.  Roof gables, chimneys, and vent stacks may extend to a 

height not to exceed 35 feet above the average level of the base of the foundation of the 
building.  Height regulations prescribed herein shall not apply to satellite earth station 
antennas or any personal communication electronic facilities protected by the Federal 
Telecommunications Act of 1996. 

 
7. Minimum front yard building setback:  25 feet; 20 feet on cul-de-sac bulbs as measured from 

the front property / right-of-way line. 
 

8. Minimum side yard building setbacks:  5 feet for interior, non-corner lots and the non-street 
side of corner lots; 10 feet exterior side yard for corner lots if a minimum fifteen (15) feet by 
fifteen (15) feet visibility triangle, as measured from the property line / street right-of-way 
line, that restricts the placement or maintenance of any vertical obstruction, either natural or 
man-made, within a vertical distance of between three (3) feet and eight (8) feet of the natural 
ground elevation, is provided on the platted lot subdivision at any street, public or private, 
intersection.  A street side setback of twenty-five (25) feet minimum will be required for all 
lots siding on a designated major arterial, minor arterial or major collector. 

 
9. Minimum rear yard building setback:  10 feet, except when the rear utility easement width is 

greater than ten (10) feet, the greater width is the minimum rear yard building setback.  When 
a lot or a reserve is either directly adjacent to a major or minor arterial right-of-way or directly 
adjacent to a reserve less than fifteen (15) feet wide that is adjacent to a major or minor 
arterial, the minimum rear yard building setback is twenty –five (25) feet measured from the 
street right-of-way line and a minimum of ten (10) feet from the rear property line.  When a 
residential lots backs to a designated major or minor arterial and a detached one-story garage 
is constructed on the residential lot, the rear yard between the detached one-story garage and 
the rear property line may be reduced to a minimum of three ( 3) feet if a minimum of twenty 
–five (25) feet is maintained between the rear of the one-story detached garage and the right-
of-way line of the major or minor arterial. 

 
10. All lots shall have a minimum of two (2) trees, planted in the front yard setback.  The trees 

must be a minimum of one and one-half (1-1/2) inches in caliper width and a minimum height 
of six (6) feet as measured at the tree trunk from the ground as planted.  The trees must be 
located between five (5) feet and fifteen (15) feet from a side lot line and between five (5) feet 
and twenty (20) feet from the front property line with a minimum of ten (10) feet between tree 
trucks.  

   
 
E. Development Regulations for Commercial Tract – Area regulations, yard requirements, and 

maximum lot coverage, height, and floor area per District MU in the Zoning Ordinance shall apply 
to the Commercial tract within the PD.  At the time of the preliminary plat of any commercial 
land, a draft of the protective covenants whereby the Developer proposes to regulate the use of the 
land shall be submitted to the City.  The restrictive covenants, conditions or limitations shall never 
be less than the minimum requirements of the City as specified in the City’s applicable 
ordinance(s). 
 
 

F. Parks, Recreation and Trails – As shown on Figure 3, an integrated network of open space and 
recreational amenities shall be provided in accordance with the following regulations: 

 
1. A landscape buffer with a minimum 15-foot width shall be located along each side of the 

central spine road, as shown on Figure 3, where lots side or rear to the spine road.  The buffer 
is in addition to the minimum street right-of-way width and shall include trees, benches, 
plazas and landscape screening.  No on-street parking will be allowed along the designated 
spine road. 

Cop
y



 5 

  
2. Recreational sites will be strategically located along the central spine road, and shall include 

the following:  
 
(a) A recreational site north of Meridiana Parkway (County Road 56) near the main project 

entry shall include water recreation i.e., “splash pad”, and a swimming pool with dressing 
rooms, playground and picnic facilities. 

(b) A recreational site south of Meridiana Parkway (County Road 56) near the main project 
entry. 

(c) A recreational site north of Cedar Rapids Parkway (County Road 57) shall include a 
swimming pool and splash pad, with dressing rooms, playground and picnic facilities.  

(d) Additional Recreation Sites, strategically located near the entries of various 
neighborhood pods, as shown on Figure 2. A contributing park, recreation and/or open 
space area must be located a maximum of one-quarter (1/4) mile from all residential lots. 

(e) A contributing park / recreation / open space area of a minimum area of one-quarter (1/4) 
acre must be contained within each private gated section. 

(f) In addition to the three recreation sites identified above, six additional recreation sites 
shall be provided with the following minimum improvements.  

- Recreation sites shall provide a variety of recreation uses both 
passive and active.  At a minimum, a recreation site shall include a 
paved plaza area a minimum of 500 square feet and shall include a 
decorative paving pattern. 

- Each site shall include at least 2 benches, 2 shade trees, a drinking 
fountain and bicycle parking.  Bicycle parking shall include racks or 
other structures intended for parking bicycles, with a minimum of 4 
spaces. 

- At least 2 parks shall include ball field facilities for informal play, 
including baseball back stops and soccer goals. 

- At least 1 park shall include a fenced area with double gates for use 
as a dog park. 

 
 

3. On-site storm water detention designed as permanent lakes will be provided within the 
project, providing additional open space with recreational amenities.  A large lake will be 
located near the project entry. 
Contributing open space areas shall include the area of the permanent water surface and the 
adjacent side slopes, at a maximum slope of 5:1, for the permanent lake with a minimum 
water depth of six (6) feet beyond the slope transition.  On-site storm water detention area that 
do not contain a permanent lake area or do not contain permanent man-made improvements, 
such as hike/bike trails with benches/structures, and that are not accessible with a minimum of 
one access point directly from a street (public or private) will not be included in the 
calculation for the minimum amount of required parks / recreation / open space. 
 
(a) A minimum of two (2) view corridors per lake with an unobstructed view from the 

adjacent streets with a minimum combined width of 60 feet, per lake, shall be provided to 
each permanent lake. The minimum width of a single view corridor is 20 feet.  Views to 
the permanent lakes from the view corridors shall not be obstructed by fences, structures, 
screening or landscaping that would prevent seeing the lake area. 

(b) View corridors shall be separated by a minimum of one thousand (1,000) feet as 
measured along the lake water edge.  Unless the lake is less than one thousand (1,000) 
feet in length in which case the view corridors shall be separated by at least 4/5 the total 
length of the lake. 

(c) A concrete pedestrian path a minimum of five (5) feet in width shall connect the required 
street sidewalk with the lake water edge. 

 

Cop
y



 6 

4. Minimum 4-foot width sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of local residential 
streets. All sidewalks shall be constructed in accordance with the City of Iowa Colony 
standard details and shall meet the State of Texas ADA standards.   
 

5. Minimum 5-foot width sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of major arterials, 
minor arterials, major collectors and the central spine road (as depicted in Figure 4 
attached) within and adjacent to the property.  At the discretion of the developer, a six-foot 
wide sidewalk may be constructed on only one side of the right-of-way in lieu of two 5 foot 
wide sidewalks on both sides of the right-of-way.  In either case, the sidewalks may 
meander out of the right-of-way and into an adjacent landscape reserve if so provided. 

 
 

 
G. School and Community Facility Sites  
 

1. As shown on Figure 2, an approximate forty-eight acre elementary and junior high school site 
shall be provided for purchase at the option of the Alvin Independent School District. If the 
AISD chooses not to purchase the site, the site is limited to the same uses as for tracts 
identified as Single Family Residential (SFR) on Figure 2. 

2. At no cost to the City of Iowa Colony, a 4.66 acre site located south of CR 56, and west of CR 
383 shall be provided to the City, for the purpose of an EMS / Fire Station Site. As the land 
adjacent to the 4.66 acres provided to the City become available for development, the land 
shall be offered to the City of Iowa Colony as a first right-of-refusal at fair market value.  
 

 
H. Street Plan and Cross Sections. 

 
1. Street improvements shall be built in phases as the project develops in accordance with the 

City’s Engineering Design Criteria Manual, Developers Agreement, street plan and cross 
sections listed below.  

 
 Figure 4: Thoroughfare Exhibit 
 Figure 5: Street cross section for the spine road (divided) and greenbelt 
 Figure 6: Street cross section for the spine road (undivided) and greenbelt 

 
 

 
I. Project Phasing – Figure 7 indicates the general time and location of the proposed development 

phasing.  The precise dates of each phase is subject to change due to general economic variables 
and market demand. 
 
 

J. Specific Conditions – Implementation of this master-planned community will require 
consideration of site conditions that necessitate granting the following variances from specific 
sections of the Subdivision Ordinance and Engineering Design Criteria Manual: 

 
 

1. Section 36 (D):  No block shall exceed a length of one thousand two hundred (1,200) feet in 
residential or commercial developments. 

 
All streets within the gated areas shall be private and access will be limited to local residential 
traffic only.  Entry points will be limited for security purposes.  Consequently, streets will not 
be stubbed to adjacent acreage, resulting in external block lengths greater than 1,200 feet.  
Some internal blocks will exceed 1,200 feet, to a maximum distance of 2,600 feet, to 
accommodate detention lakes and reserves.    This variance does not apply to areas of the 
development that do not include private residential streets.  

Cop
y



 7 

 
 
 
2. Section37 (B)(5):  Access to Public Streets.  The subdividing of land shall be such as to 

provide each lot with satisfactory access to a public street. 
 

All the streets in the gated portions of the community will be private with access limited to 
local traffic only.  Gated private street neighborhoods will connect to public streets.  All gated 
sections containing more than 35 lots shall have at least two connections to a public street.  If 
a future second point of access is not yet constructed a temporary connection shall be 
provided until the permanent connection is constructed.  All private streets will be constructed 
to the City’s public street standards.  A homeowners’ association will assume all 
responsibility to repair and maintain the private streets.  As such, the adherence to this 
requirement for the private street portions of the development will not be required. 
 

 

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



 

1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 

The Woodlands, Texas 77380 

Tel: 281.363.4039 

Fax: 281.363.3459 

www.jonescarter.com 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100  

July 27, 2021 
 
Mr. Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 

Principal 

Adico Consulting Engineers 

2114 El Dorado Blvd., Suite 400 

Friendswood, TX  77546 

 

Re: Plan of Development Sterling Lakes at Iowa Colony and Sierra Vista 

 

Dear Dinh: 

 

 

The purpose of this amendment is to allow for the expansion of non-residential uses, “commercial” uses 

along the south side of Meridiana Parkway west of Sierra Vista Drive.  A subdivision plat for a Montessori 

school was submitted for P&Z consideration but is being deferred to make changes to the proposed site 

plan.  This amendment will also allow for the approval of a temporary “sales office” west of Crystal View 

Drive.  

We also changed the language regarding “Swing” uses on the tract west of Karsten Blvd.  And we 

anticipate making additional changes to include the Road Construction Sequence Exhibit to document the 

agreement with the HOA regarding the timing to construct the extension of Sterling Lakes Blvd. agreed to 

at the July 19th, City Council meeting.  I have listed below the changes that were made to each of 

documents included in this application. 

 

 

Figure 1:  Boundary Exhibit  - no change 

Figure 1a:  Jurisdiction Map  - no change 

Figure 2:  General Development Plan – 

 The map was revised to show the extension of “Commercial” uses along 

the south side of Meridiana Blvd.. 

Figure 3:  Landscape and Open Space Plan – no change 

Figure 4:  Thoroughfare Exhibit – no change 

Figure 5:  Street cross section for Spine Road, (divided)- no change 

Figure 6:  Street cross section for Spine Road, (undivided) – no change  

Figure 7:  Pedestrian cross section and detail – no change  

Figure 8:   Sterling Lakes North General Plan- no change 

Figure 9:   Phasing Plan of Development – no change 

Figure 10   to be added before CC meeting – Sterling Lakes North Road 

Construction Sequence. 

 

 

Cop
y



 

 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100   

 

We appreciate your consideration in this matter and ask that you accept the preliminary plat for 

consideration by the Planning Commission.         

 

 

Sincerely, 

         

 

 

       Stan Winter, A.I.C.P. 

       Vice President 

        

Cop
y


	Notice of Public Hearings for Aug 3 and 16, 2021, on UDC and Zoning (1).pdf (p.1)
	7.6.21 P&Z Draft Minutes (2).pdf (p.2-3)
	LOR to Approve MER 58PP Pkg 07282021 (1).pdf (p.4-5)
	LOR to Approve SLN1 PP Pkg 07302021.pdf (p.6-10)
	Layout1
	Layout 2
	Layout 3
	Layout 3
	PL4067110-Layout 4
	Layout 4

	Layout 2
	Layout 3
	Layout 2
	Layout 3
	PL4067110-Layout 2
	Layout 2

	PL4067110-Layout 3
	Layout 3


	LOR to Approve SLN2 PP (formerly SLN 1 J&C) Pkg 07282021 (1).pdf (p.11-12)
	Layout1

	LOR to Approve SLN3 PP (formerly SLN2) Pkg 07282021 (1).pdf (p.13-14)
	Layout1

	LOR to Approve SLN4 PP (formerly SLN5) Pkg 07282021 (1).pdf (p.15-16)
	Layout1

	LOR to Approve SLN5 PP (Formerly SLN7) Pkg 07282021 (1).pdf (p.17-18)
	Layout1

	LOR to Approve SLN6 PP (Formerly SLN9) Pkg 07282021 (1).pdf (p.19-20)
	Layout1

	LOR to Approve SLN7 PP (Formerly SLN10) Pkg 07282021 (1).pdf (p.21-23)
	Layout1
	Layout1

	210803 LOR Sterling Lakes at Iowa Colony and Sierra Vista Plan of Development Amendment Number 3.pdf (p.24-27)
	Plan of Dev 11-25-15.pdf (p.28-42)
	Exhibit B_11-20-15
	Figure 1 Boundary Exhibit
	Figure 1A Jurisdiction Map
	Figure 2 General Plan
	Figure 3 Landscape Open Space
	Figure 4 Thouroghfare and Street Plan
	Figure 5 Spine Road Divided
	Figure 6 Spine Road Undivided
	Figure 7 Phasing Plan

	Compare Result 1.pdf (p.43-49)
	Figure 2_General Plan -mark up (1).pdf (p.50)
	Composite 7-7-21.pdf (p.51-67)
	Cover letter Revised.pdf (p.68-69)

